
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
 

#healthyplym 

 
 
 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Thursday 7 January 2021 

10.00 am 

Virtual Meeting 
 

Members: 

Councillor Kate Taylor, Chair 

Councillor Laing, Vice Chair 

Councillors Allen and Nicholson. 

 

Statutory Co-opted Members: Strategic Director for People, Director of Children’s 

Services, NHS Devon Clinical Commissioning Group, Director for Public Health and 

Healthwatch. 

Non-statutory Members: Livewell SW, University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust and the 

Voluntary and Community Sector. 

 
Members are invited to attend the above virtual meeting to consider the items of business 

overleaf.  This meeting will be broadcast and available on-line for playback once the meeting has 

concluded. By joining the meeting, councillors are consenting to being filmed during the meeting 

and to the use of the recording for the online viewing. 

 

The Council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act. Data collected during this 

webcast will be retained in accordance with authority’s published policy. 

 

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 

process please follow this link - http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings 
 

Tracey Lee 

Chief Executive 

 

 Oversight and Governance 

Chief Executive’s Department 

Plymouth City Council 

Ballard House 

Plymouth  PL1 3BJ 

 

Please ask for  Amelia Boulter 

T 01752 304570 

E amelia.boulter@plymouth.gov.uk 

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Published 21 December 2020 

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

 

1. Apologies    

  

 To receive apologies for non-attendance by Health and Wellbeing Board Members. 

  

2. Declarations of Interest    

  

 The Board will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 

  

3. Chairs urgent business    

  

 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 

  

4. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 4) 

  

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 8 October 2020. 

  

5. Questions from the public    

  

 To receive questions from the public in accordance with the Constitution. 

 

Questions, of no longer than 50 words, can be submitted to the Democratic Support 

Unit, Plymouth City Council, Ballard House, Plymouth, PL1 3BJ, or email to 

democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk. Any questions must be received at least five clear 

working days before the date of the meeting. 

  

6. COVID-19 Health Protection Board Update    

 

7. Update from Board Members    

 

8. Compassionate Cities    

 

9. Feedback from Mental Health Workshop   (To Follow) 

 

10. Work Programme   (Pages 5 - 6) 

  

 The Board are invited to add items to the work programme. 
  

 

mailto:DEMOCRATICSUPPORT@PLYMOUTH.GOV.UK


 

Health and Wellbeing Board Thursday 8 October 2020 

OFFICIAL 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

Thursday 8 October 2020 
 

PRESENT: 

 

Councillor Kate Taylor, in the Chair. 

Councillor Laing, Vice Chair. 

Councillors Allen and Nicholson. 

 

Apologies for absence: Dr Morris (Livewell SW).  

 

Also in attendance: Ruth Harrell (Director of Public Health), Craig McArdle 

(Strategic Director for People), Alison Botham (Director of Children’s Services, 
Plymouth City Council), Anna Coles (Service Director of Integrated 

Commissioning), Ann James (Chief Executive, University Hospitals Plymouth NHS 

Trust), Dr Shelagh McCormick (Devon NHS CCG), Nick Pennell (Healthwatch 

Devon, Plymouth and Torbay), Claire Hill (Deputy CEO Mannamead Wellbeing 

Hub), John Green (Low Carbon City Officer), Rachel Silcock (Strategic 

Commissioning Manager) and Amelia Boulter (Democratic Advisor). 

 

The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 11.52 am. 

 
Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may be 

subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have been 

amended. 

 

11. Declarations of Interest   

 

There were no declarations of interest made in accordance with the code of 

conduct. 

 

12. Chairs urgent business   

 

The Chair reported that the HWB membership has now been adjusted and the first 

HWB workshop would take place on 15 October 2020 and would focus on mental 

health. 

 

Dr Ruth Harrell provided an update to the Board on COVID-19.  It was reported 

that there had been a large escalation across the country as well as in Plymouth.  

There was a need for the population to understand the basic measures of social 

distancing, hand washing and to wear a face covering in an enclosed space.  If they 

have any symptoms to isolate for 2 weeks only get a test if you have symptoms. 

 

Plymouth City Council have set up an email address to hear from people on their 
experiences on testing:  covid19testfeeback@plymouth.gov.uk 

 

13. Minutes   

 

Agreed that the minutes of 30 July 2020 were confirmed. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4

mailto:covid19testfeeback@plymouth.gov.uk


 

Health and Wellbeing Board Thursday 8 October 2020 

OFFICIAL 

 

14. Questions from the public   

 

There were no questions from members of the public. 

 

15. CQC Collaboration Report   

 

Craig McArdle was present for this item and referred to the report in the agenda 

pack.  The CQC identified Devon with a focus on Plymouth on how we have 

responded to the pandemic.  The findings would be published in October. 

 

The report outlines the positive working taking place across the system and would 

now inform the winter planning. 

 

The Board noted the CQC Collaboration Report. 
 

16. Integrated Care System Update   

 

Craig McArdle was present for this item and referred to the report in the agenda 

pack.  The report outlines the Health and Wellbeing Board being at the centre of the 

Local Care Plan (LCP) and provided an update on the progress made since February 

2020.  Next steps to develop the architecture and programme of works and this 

would be reported back to the Health and Wellbeing Board on progress.  It was 

reported that there was still some debate on whether there would be 4 or 5 LCPs. 

 

Dr Shelagh McCormick did not agree with this position and that the GPs were 

concerned on the impact and preferred to continue under the western locality. 

 

It was agreed that the Chair would send a letter on behalf of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board outlining the robust discussion which was not unanimous and taking 

on board the strong view from the Primary Care Networks (PCN) and to continue 

working with the PCNs to seek a solution. 

 

17. Transforming Cities - Mobility Hubs   

 

John Green (Low Carbon City Officer) was present for this item and referred to the 

presentation in the agenda pack. 

 

Questions related to: 

 

 How young people fit into this model, how to engage them and ensuring the 

voice of the young people are heard? 

 Space for a mobility hub? 

 The widening of inequalities? 

 Affordability and role within the hubs to support this? 

 Whether the roads were sufficient for this scheme and safe? 

 
The Board noted the Transforming Cities – Mobility Hubs presentation. 

 

Page 2



 

Health and Wellbeing Board Thursday 8 October 2020 

OFFICIAL 

18. Loneliness Action Plan   

 

Rachel Silcock (Strategic Commissioning Manager) was present this item and 

referred to the report in the agenda pack.  The purpose of this item was to bring to 

the Board’s attention the Loneliness Action Plan and to seek support for the action 

group.  Dr Shelagh McCormick, Councillor Laing and Nick Pennell put themselves 

forward to join the action. 

 

The Health and Wellbeing Board agreed to adopt the updated Loneliness Action 

Plan. Further updates will be provided to the Health & Wellbeing Board on progress. 

 

19. Update from Board Members   

 

 

The Chair invited Board Members to provide an update: 
 

  Alison Botham (Director of Children’s Services, Plymouth City Council) 

reported the return of schools in September and the remarkable effort from 

the staff and from across the partnership.  They were looking at the health 

and wellbeing of children since returning back to school and it was highlighted 

that attendance across primary and secondary was high.  They were ensuring 

the continued contact with children and young people and social workers 

were making best use of digital to provide support more effectively. 

 

 Claire Hill (Deputy CEO Mannamead Wellbeing Hub) reported that the 

whole hub network had identified specialisms within each hub and to share 

this across the city.  Focussing on key areas:  mental health, loneliness and 

digital inclusion and working on a bid to support and continue this work.  The 

voluntary and community sector communicating that they were open for 

business as well as planning for the winter and further restrictions and were 

delivering a hybrid service on-line service and were open for face-to-face 

which cause capacity issues.  The question was asked with the front line staff 

working within the voluntary and community sector were eligible for free flu 

vaccinations.  Currently they were paying for staff to be vaccinated and would 

like the criteria to be reassessed. 

 

  Anna Coles (Service Director of Integrated Commissioning) reported that 

the healthcare system was stretched with challenging demand.  They were 

continuing to support providers across the city and picking up individual 

issues.  Recruitment of front line care staff looking at career paths building on 
the Proud to Care campaign with the view to attract people into this area of 

work.  The Independence at Home Team were looking to recruit 6 

apprentices.   

 

  Ruth Harrell (Director of Public Health, Plymouth City Council) reported on 

the good practice taking place within Plymouth with the wider networks 

coming together to unite on how to tackle this big challenge. 

 

Page 3



 

Health and Wellbeing Board Thursday 8 October 2020 

OFFICIAL 

  Ann James (Chief Executive, University Hospitals Plymouth NHS Trust) 

reported that occupancy was at around 96% and they were managing a small 

but growing number of Covid patients.  They were providing continued 
support to fatigued staff from the first wave.  The Trust Board meetings now 

take place on teams which has resulted in more public engagement.  The 

Board declared a health climate emergency and would be focussing on 

buildings, workforce, transport and sustainability.  They have made a 

commitment to diversity and would be addressing a number key issues faced 

for women, BAME, disability, LBGT+ and religious groups.  They were 

encouraging staff and patients to have the flu vaccination and working 

collaboratively across the system to facilitate tests. 

 

  Craig McArdle (Strategic Director for People, Plymouth City Council) 

reported that the council had given the green light to the Vines and Colwill 

Lodge being pulled together into one facility enhancing life chances.  Thanked 

the hospital and Livewell SW for their continued support with care homes. 

 

  Nick Pennell (Healthwatch Devon, Plymouth and Torbay) reported that 

Healthwatch now have a Devon-wide approach corporately but act locally.  

They were producing a weekly newsletter providing advice and information 

and focussing on two particular services: access to GPs and access to dental 

services.  Future project to work more closely with PPGs to strengthen the 

voice of the public.  They were also supporting the ethical reference groups 

and have produced a Covid-19 report highlighting the digital divide.  They 

would also continue to ensure that the public voice was heard in a more 

creative way. 

 

  Dr Shelagh McCormick (Devon NHS CCG) reported that GPs working with 

Covid were ensuring safe work practices at the forefront and catching up on 
the work paused such as screenings and immunisations in a safe way.  Flu 

Clinics were running well and innovative work taking place in Plymouth and 

gave thanks to the council for the facility within the city centre providing a 

walkthrough and drive through flu clinic to allow people to be vaccinated in a 

safe way.  They were continuing the PCN work however recruitment to 

additional roles had proved difficult.  GP recruitment remains challenging.    

The implementation of enhanced help in care homes and aligning with PCNs 

to provide personalised care plans and working with Livewell SW on schemes 

to keep people out of hospital. 

 

20. Work Programme   

 

The Board were invited to add items to the work programme. 

 

It was agreed that the Democratic Advisor will email the Board for items to be 

included on the work programme. 

 

 

Page 4



 

January 2021  

OFFICIAL 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

Work Programme 2020 - 2021

 

 

 

 

Date of meeting 

 

Agenda item 

 

Responsible  

30 July 2020 

COVID-19 Update from Board Members All Board Members 

Plymouth COVID-19 Local Outbreak 

Management Plan 

Ruth Harrell 

Health Protection Report for the Health and 

Wellbeing Boards of Devon County Council, 

Plymouth City Council, Torbay Council and 

Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly Councils 2018-

2019 

Julie Frier 

A Framework for COVID19 Inequalities Ruth Harrell 

8 October 2020 

CQC Collaboration Report Craig McArdle 

Transforming Cities – Mobility Hubs John Green 

Update from Board Members All Board Members 

Integrated Care System Update Craig McArdle 

Loneliness Action Plan Rachel Silcock 

7 January 2021 

OVID-19 Health Protection Board Update Ruth Harrell 

Update from Board Members All Board Members 

Compassionate Cities Gail Wilson and Abs 

Gyamfuah-Assibey – St Lukes 

ICS Verbal Ruth Harrell 

Feedback from Mental Health Workshop  

4 March 2021 

Update from Board Members All Board Members 

ICS  

Children’s mental health and the support 

packages 

 

Items to be 

scheduled 

Dental Health  

Food Insecurity   

Growth Board/Resurgum Board  

Trauma Informed  

New community mental health framework  Livewell SW 

 

Admission avoidance services across physical 

and mental health (CCRT, acute nursing 

service and First Response) 

Livewell SW 

 
How citizens with learning disabilities and 

severe mental illness have fared in Covid  

Livewell SW 

 
Projected increases in demand for MH services 

linked to economy and post Covid 

Livewell SW 

 
Transformation in Enhanced Primary Care 

(community MDT and care home support) 

Livewell SW 

 

Page 5 Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	10 Work Programme

